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MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016

1 COMPANY AND GROUP PROFILE

1.1 BUSINESS MODEL

Group structure

Founded in 1988 and based in Montabaur, Germany, United Internet AG is the Group parent
company of the United Internet Group.

Together with its service company United Internet Corporate Services GmbH, United Internet
AG focuses mainly on centralized functions such as Finance, Corporate Controlling &
Accounting, Tax, Press Relations (PR), Investor Relations (IR), Investment Management,
Legal, Corporate Governance, Compliance, Risk Management, Corporate Audit, Procurement
and HR Management.

Compared to the previous year, the corporate structure as of December 31, 2016 was largely
unchanged.

Within the sub-group 1&1 Telecommunication SE, the operating segment Access is managed
in particular by 1&1 Telecom GmbH and 1&1 Versatel GmbH.

Operating activities in the Applications segment are primarily managed in the field of Business
Applications by 1&1 Internet SE, including its main domestic and foreign subsidiaries. These
include — in addition to 1&1’s foreign subsidiaries 1&1 Internet Inc. (USA), 1&1 Internet Ltd. (UK),
1&1 Internet S.A.R.L. (France), and 1&1 Internet Espafia S.L.U. (Spain) — especially Arsys
Internet S.L. (Spain), Fasthosts Internet Ltd. (UK), home.pl S.A. (Poland), InterNetX GmbH,
Sedo GmbH and united-domains AG. In the field of Consumer Applications, the main companies
are those pooled under 1&1 Mail & Media Applications SE, namely 1&1 De-Mail GmbH, 1&1
Mail & Media GmbH, affilinet GmbH and United Internet Media GmbH.

In addition to these operative and fully consolidated subsidiaries, United Internet AG held a
number of other investments as of December 31, 2016. These mainly consist of the equity
interests held by United Internet Ventures AG in the listed companies Drillisch AG, Germany
(20.11%), Hi-Media S.A., France (10.46%), Rocket Internet SE, Germany (8.31%), and Tele
Columbus AG, Germany (25.11%), as well as investments in the strategic partners ePages
GmbH, Germany (25.01%), Open-Xchange AG, Germany (27.28%), ProfitBricks GmbH,
Germany (30.20%), uberall GmbH, Germany (30.34%), and virtual minds AG, Germany
(25.10%).

Further details on these investments and changes in investments are provided in section 2.2
“Business development” under “Group investments”.



Simplified illustration of the Group structure of United Internet (as of December 31, 2016) with
significant operating subsidiaries and investments:

United Internet AG

1&1 Telecommunication SE (100%)

— 1&1 Telecom (100%) - 1&1 Versatel (100%)

1&1 Internet SE (100%)

— 1&1 Internet USA (100%) [ Arsys (100%)

- 1&1 Internet UK (100%) Fasthosts (100%)

— 1&1 Internet FR (100%) home.pl (100%)

— 1&1 Internet ES (100%) InterNetX (95.56%)
Sedo (100%)

— united-domains (100%)

1&1 Mail & Media Applications SE (100%)

1&1 De-Mail (100%) affilinet (100%)
1&1 Mail & Media (100%) United Internet Media (100%)

United Internet Ventures AG (100%)

— Drillisch (20.11%) — ePages (25.01%)

— Hi-Media (10.46%) — Open-Xchange (27.28%)
— Rocket Internet (8.31%) - ProfitBricks (30.20%)

— Tele Columbus (25.11%) |~ uberall (30.34%)

— virtual minds (25.10%)



Business operations

With 16.97 million fee-based customer contracts and 34.29 million ad-financed free accounts,
United Internet is Europe’s leading internet specialist.

The Group’s operating business is divided into the two reporting segments/business fields
“Access” and “Applications”.

Access segment

The Access segment comprises the Group’s fee-based landline and mobile access products,
including the respective applications (such as home networks, online storage, telephony, video-
on-demand or IPTV). In addition to these products for home users and small firms, United
Internet also offers data and network solutions for SMEs, as well as infrastructure services for
large corporations. With a current length of 41,644 km (prior year: 40,825 km), United Internet
owns Germany’s second-largest fiber-optic network. It is being constantly expanded.

In its Access segment, United Internet operates exclusively in Germany where it is one of the
leading providers. The company uses its network and also purchases standardized network
services from various pre-service providers. These are enhanced with end-user devices, self-
developed applications and services from the company’s own “Internet Factory” in order to
differentiate them from the competition.

Access products are marketed by the well-known brands GMX, WEB.DE, and 1&1 which enable
the company to offer a comprehensive range of products while also targeting specific customer
groups.

Applications segment

The Applications segment comprises the Group’s application business — whether ad-financed
or via fee-based subscriptions. These applications include domains, home pages, webhosting,
servers and e-shops, Personal Information Management applications (e-mail, to-do lists,
appointments, addresses), group work, online storage and office software. The applications are
developed by the company’s “Internet Factory” or in cooperation with partner firms and operated
at the company’s data centers. United Internet also offers its customers performance-based
advertising and sales platforms on the internet via the Sedo and affilinet brands.

In its Applications segment, United Internet is also a leading global player with activities in
European countries (Germany, France, the UK, Italy, Austria, Poland, Switzerland and Spain)
as well as North America (Canada, Mexico and the USA).

Applications are marketed to specific home-user and business-user target groups via the
differently positioned brands GMX, mail.com, WEB.DE, 1&1, Arsys, Fasthosts, home.pl,
InterNetX, and united-domains.



Segments, target groups and brands (as of: December 31, 2016):

Segment Target group Brand

Consumer E
) o
Business

Access

Consumer :;-EB_’-[;; m /‘:.';;E,'E'F; 9 affilinet

mOiLCOF’ﬂ

Applications

home.pl 3arsys ;sedo InterNet{

Business  fasthosts _, E united @) domains®

@ Name changed from Versatel to 1&1 Versatel on July 1, 2016

Management

As in the previous year, the Management Board of United Internet AG comprised the
following five members in fiscal year 2016:

= Ralph Dommermuth, company founder and Chief Executive Officer
(with the company since 1988)

= Robert Hoffmann, deputy chair, Management Board member responsible for Business
Applications
(with the company since 2006)

= Jan Oetjen, Management Board member responsible for Consumer Applications
(with the company since 2008)

= Martin Witt, Management Board member responsible for Access
(with the company since 2009)

= Frank Krause, Chief Financial Officer
(with the company since 2015)

As in the previous year, the Supervisory Board of United Internet AG elected by the Annual
Shareholders' Meeting 2015 comprised the following three members in fiscal year 2016:

= Kurt Dobitsch, chair

= Michael Scheeren, deputy chair

= Kai-Uwe Ricke



Main markets and competition

Germany is the most important sales market of the United Internet Group by far and accounts
for around 89% of total sales. In addition to Germany, the Group’s other major sales markets
include the UK, the USA, Spain, France, Poland, Austria, and Canada.

In terms of its competitive standing, United Internet (in the purely domestically aligned
Access segment) is among the top three suppliers in Germany’s broadband market with its
DSL products and one of Germany’s fastest growing companies with its mobile internet
products.

United Internet is the market leader in Germany for hosting and cloud applications (in the
globally aligned Applications segment).

In Europe, United Internet’s hosting and cloud applications are now available in all major
markets — either locally or via Germany. In addition to the domestic German market, these
mainly include the major European economies of France, the UK, Italy, Poland and Spain.
With the exception of Italy, where United Internet only began operations in May 2012, the
company is among the market leaders in the aforementioned countries. All in all, therefore,
United Internet is also the leading European supplier of hosting and cloud applications.

Further target markets for the Group’s application business outside Europe are the North
American countries Canada, USA and Mexico. In the most important of these markets, the
USA, United Internet is one of the five leading companies in this segment.

Viewed globally, United Internet is thus one of the top three companies for hosting and cloud
applications — also according to internet analysts such as 451 RESEARCH.



Main locations

As of December 31, 2016, the United Internet Group employed a total headcount of 8,082 at
around 40 domestic and foreign facilities.

Main locations (by headcount)

Service for Access & Applications Business

Location Main activity Company / brand
HQ, Investments, IR, PR, Finance, Corporate Controlling &
Accounting, Risk Management, Internal Audit, Legal, United Internet
Montabaur Compliance, HR
Finance, PR, Marketing, Sales, Logistics, Customer 181
Service for Access & Applications Business
Development, Product Management, Data Center 181 WEB.DE
Karlsruhe Operation, Marketing, Sales, Purchasing, Customer j T

GMX, mail.com

Zweibriicken Customer Service for Access & Applications Business 1&1
Applications Business (Portals) GMX, WEB.DE
Munich
Applications Business (Affiliate Marketing) affilinet
Cgpu Qty Customer Service for Applications Business 1&1
(Philippines)
Madrédsézla_icr)‘g)}rono Applications Business, DC Operation in Spain 1&1, Arsys
Stettin _ . .
(Poland) Applications Business in Poland home.pl
Flensburg Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
GIO(LSE)S ter Applications Business and DC Operation in UK 1&1, Fasthosts
Development, Customer Service for Applications Business 1&1
Berlin
Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
Dortmund Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
Bucharest . _ .
(Romania) Development in Applications Business 1&1
Chesterbrook / Lenexa Applications Business, DC Operation and Customer 181
(USA) Service in North America
Dusseldorf Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
Cologne Applications Business (Domain Marketing) Sedo
Stuttgart Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
Essen Access Business (B-to-B and Wholesale) 1&1 Versatel
Regensburg Applications Business (Reselling) InterNetX

Starnberg

Applications Business (Domains)

united-domains




1.2 STRATEGY

United Internet’'s business model is based predominantly on customer contracts (electronic
subscriptions) with fixed monthly amounts and contractually agreed terms. Such a business
model ensures stable and plannable revenue and cash flows, protects against macroeconomic
effects and provides the financial scope to grasp opportunities in new business fields and
markets — organically or via acquisitions and investments.

A large number of customer relationships also helps the company to utilize so-called economies
of scale: the greater the customer demand for products created by our development teams and
operated at our own data centers, the greater our profit will be. These profits can then be
invested in new customers, new products and new business fields.

From the current perspective, Cloud Applications and Mobile Internet will be the growth markets
over the coming years. With its clear positioning in the Access and Applications segments,
United Internet is well placed to exploit the expected market potential.

In view of the dynamic market development of Cloud Applications and Mobile Internet, the
company’s growth opportunities are clearly apparent: universally accessible, increasingly
powerful broadband connections are enabling new and more sophisticated cloud applications.
These internet-based programs for end users and companies will be United Internet’'s growth
drivers in the years ahead — both as stand-alone products in the Applications business field as
well as in combination with landline and mobile access products in the Access segment
business field.

With its many years of experience as an access and application provider, its expertise in
software development and data center operation, marketing, sales and customer support, as
well as its strong and well-known brands (such as 1&1, GMX and WEB.DE), and customer
relationships with millions of private users, freelancers and small companies in Germany and
abroad (currently over 51 million user accounts world-wide), the company is excellently
positioned.

In order to leverage this positioning for further sustainable growth, United Internet will also
invest heavily in new customers, new products and business fields in future, as well as in its
further internationalization.

In addition to organic growth, United Internet also continually seeks possibilities for company
acquisitions, investments and cooperations, in order to extend its market positions,
competencies and product portfolios.

Thanks to its high and plannable level of free cash flow, United Internet has a strong source of
internal funding as well as good access to debt financing markets.

Further information on strategy, opportunities and targets is included in the “Risk, Opportunity
and Forecast Report” in section 4.



1.3 CONTROL SYSTEMS

The internal control systems help management steer and monitor the Group and its segments.
The systems consist of planning, actual situation and forecast calculations based on the Group’s
annually revised strategic planning. Particular attention is paid to market developments,
technological developments and trends, as well as their impact on the Group’s own products
and services, and the Group’s financial possibilities. The corporate control system’s aim is the
continual and sustainable development of United Internet and its subsidiaries.

The Group’s reporting system comprises the monthly profit calculations and quarterly IFRS-
compliant reports for all consolidated subsidiaries. It presents the financial position and
performance of the Group and all divisions. Financial reporting also includes other detailed
information which is required for the assessment and control of operating business.

The key performance indicators of the United Internet Group for chief corporate management
are presented in “Segment reporting” under point 5 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Quarterly reports on significant risks for the company represent a further component of the
control systems.

The above mentioned reports are discussed at meetings of the Management Board and
Supervisory Board and provide the fundamental basis for assessments and decisions.

In order to control the Group’s performance, United Internet AG uses in particular the key figures
of the income statement (sales, EBITDA, EBIT, EPS), of the statement of cash flows (free cash
flow) and of the statement of financial position (asset items, financial liabilities). The company
also employs non-financial key figures, in particular the number and growth of fee-based
customer contracts, as well as ad-financed free accounts. The use and definition of the relevant
key financial figures is shown in section 2.2.

The key performance indicators (KPIs) are the number of fee-based customer contracts, sales,
EBITDA, EBIT, and EPS. These figures are also used in forecast reporting.

A comparison of the KPIs stated in the forecast and the actual figures is provided in this
Management Report in 2.2 “Business Development” in the section “Actual and Forecast
Development” as well in 2.3 “Position of the Group”.

The number of customer contracts, the gross and net sales figures and the related customer
acquisition costs in particular — compared to the company’s plans and forecast calculations —
serve as an early warning system.



1.4 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As an internet service provider, the United Internet Group does not engage in research and
development (R&D) on a scale comparable with manufacturing companies. Against this
backdrop, United Internet does not disclose key figures for R&D.

At the same time, the United Internet brands stand for high-performance internet access,
solutions and innovative web-based products and applications which are mostly developed in-
house. The success of United Internet is rooted in an ability to develop, combine or adapt
innovative products and services and launch them on major markets.

Thanks to its own development teams, United Internet is able to react fast and flexibly to new
ideas and trends and continually enhance its established products, adapting them to changing
market needs — a key success factor in the fast-moving internet market. The company’s
expertise in product development, enhancement and roll-out minimizes its reliance on third
party development work and supplies in many areas and thus ensures decisive competitive
and time-to-market advantages.

At United Internet’s own development centers (especially in Karlsruhe and Bucharest), around
2,600 developers, product managers and technical administrators (corresponding to around
32% of all employees) use mainly open source code in clearly defined and modeled
development environments. Third-party programming services are also used to swiftly and
efficiently implement specific projects. This enables the company to quickly change existing
products and adapt them to changing customer needs. United Internet also procures solutions
from partners, which are then modified according to needs and integrated into its systems.
With the aid of its self-developed and integrated applications, United Internet has a set of
modules which can be easily combined and provided with product-specific or country-specific
user interfaces in order to create a variety of powerful and integrated applications — a huge
benefit when tailoring products to varying target groups or for international rollouts.

Due to the steady growth in customer figures, the demands placed on reliability and availability
are constantly rising. In addition to the further development of existing products and continual
optimization of back-end operations, the company also focuses on continually enhancing
existing processes in order to raise system reliability and thus also customer satisfaction.

Focus areas 2016
Access
Launch of 1&1 fiber-optic business tariff

In July 2016, 1&1 launched its first two fiber-optic business tariffs with speeds of up to 1
gigabit/s tailored to the needs of small and mid-sized companies. The new tariffs are offered in
over 250 cities. Download speeds of 1,000 MBit/s and upload speeds of 200 MBit/s are possible.
In contrast to DSL, the bandwidth of fiber-optic connections are guaranteed irrespective of the
line quality.

The performance of the fiber-optic connections can be adapted in future to the customer’s rising
needs. If more performance is required, greater bandwidth can be provided via the same line —
1&1 currently offers customers up to 100 Gbit/s. Network connections are provided into the
customer’s premises.



Aggregator platform rolled out

As one of the leading DSL and mobile providers in Germany, 1&1 has developed an aggregator
platform which enables existing fiber-optic connections of other network providers in Germany
to be connected to 1&1’s infrastructure. The company’s own fiber-optic network — with a length
of around 41,000 km, the second-largest in Germany — provides nationwide aggregation
possibilities. For example, the networks of smaller providers can be connected “locally”.

The first partner to be connected to the aggregator platform was wilhelm.tel based in
Norderstedt, Schleswig-Holstein. In the metropolitan region of Hamburg, 1&1’'s private
customers can therefore already benefit from modern fiber-optic connections. Negotiations are
being held with further partners.

Fiber-optic house connections are offered in particular by several city network and regional
network operators. Until recently, however, there was no nationwide offering for customers.
This is where the new 1&1 aggregator platform with its open access design comes in. By using
the standardized interface S/PRI 4.0 — in whose development and refinement 1&1 played a
major role — existing fiber-optic networks can be connected to the platform. The use of
standards known across the industry enables suppliers of fiber-optic networks to prepare for
cooperation from an early stage while also reducing the technical complexity of network
interconnection. In addition, subsidized areas in which new fiber-optic networks are created are
obliged to grant other providers access to the network by means of open access. This creates
more and more potential partners for the aggregator platform. In this way, the networks spread
throughout Germany can be combined into a coherent infrastructure and all fiber-optic house
connections they make available can be marketed.

With its aggregator platform, 1&1 ensures access to the best possible infrastructure in order to
meet future customer requirements regarding the performance of their internet connections.

Business Applications
New design features for 1&1 MyWebsite

As of March 2016, customers of 1&1 MyWebsite have access to a premium library with over
20 million top-quality images. An intuitive search function and various filter options allow users
to quickly find suitable images and integrate them into their website.

Also launched in March 2016 for business customers, there are now more than 10,000
templates optimized for mobile devices whose sector-specific text and image worlds simplify
the creation of a professional web presence without losing individuality.

In April 2016, work started on standardizing the numerous features of 1&1 MyWebsite and
simplifying their use. A bar at the top of the screen only displays those functions that are
currently available and thus uses the available screen area much better. This also enhances
ease-of-use on notebooks and tablets.

The response speed of the user interface was improved by changing to the most up-to-date
technology — processes which previously ran on the server were shifted to the client. Industry
standards such as React, Redux, Material Ul and NodeJS are now used. A new design
language (material design) has also been introduced which — together with a new visual
language (animated illustrations) and textual tonality — makes the 1&1 MyWebsite editor appear
even clearer and more modern. The toolbar, all dialogues and many assistants and menus
have been presented in this style since the end of 2016.

As of August 2016, preconfigured sections are available to users. Unlike smaller-scale
elements, sections automatically adopt the overall website design and provide an ideal mix of
structural flexibility and high design value — an absolute first for modular website kits.



In October 2016 the MyWebsite set-up assistant was completely revamped. Users are guided
through simple steps which help them set up and subsequently publish their website. As a first
step, an online business card was launched which enables users to put their most important
contact data online just minutes after ordering the product.

All of these product innovations are based on an ongoing analysis of market and customer
needs and were brought to market with the aid of acceptance tests. By integrating feedback
possibilities directly into the product or application context, users can express their criticism —
or praise.

Numerous improvements were also made to operations during the course of the year. The use
of modern container technology (CaaS) based on Docker, Kubernetes and OpenShift enables
faster release cycles across all sites as well as the automated set-up of development and test
environments with high comparability to live installation.

Launch of 1&1 Cloud App Center

In February 2016, the 1&1 Cloud App Center was introduced. It was developed in cooperation
with Bithami, an international supplier of server applications and development environments.
Bitnami provides over 100 open source apps on the server infrastructures of selected partners
as one-click installations. Thanks to the new partnership, 1&1 customers can now roll out and
run web applications and development stacks in the cloud with a single click. As the apps are
supplied centrally, they can be installed within minutes — thus simplifying access to the powerful
1&1 Cloud platform even more.

Introduction of 1&1 Marketing Toolbox for SMEs

In April 2016, a new online marketing package for small and mid-size enterprises (SMES) was
introduced. The new 1&1 Marketing Toolbox is a complete package comprising search engine
optimization (SEO) and marketing (SEM), company entries in online directories, and email
marketing. It thus bundles the most important marketing tools for companies seeking to attract
new customers and increase their online success.

In order to ensure the best-possible interaction of the individual products, the 1&1 Control Panel
also provides a new overview in which customers can quickly see the current status of their
online marketing activities. This “center page” displays the relevant performance indicators. In
addition, customers receive customized tips and help about online marketing and can also
easily switch to any product from here. In the case of the performance indicators in particular,
a possibility was created to enable data exchange between products and the 1&1 Control Panel
in order to quickly provide customers with all relevant information — also outside the actual
product.

1&1 Managed Cloud Hosting

In July 2016, the cloud portfolio was expanded with the addition of a new 1&1 Managed Cloud
Hosting product. Customers will benefit in future from an easy-to-use, even more flexible cloud
solution which in contrast to the previous root variant no longer requires any administrative
effort.

1&1 Managed Cloud Hosting uses Docker container technology. Customers can choose
between several preconfigured server stacks or assemble their own stack. At the time of
launch, the product already provided over 20 combinations, which are constantly being
expanded and tested for compatibility. In addition, the respective stack can be individually
configured for each server and additional resources booked on a minute-by-minute basis.
Moreover, users are free to customize server resources, such as CPU, memory, and SSD



storage, and thus also the performance of their infrastructure. Components can even be
expanded during operation.

Container technology not only enhances the performance of customer systems, but also their
availability. Individual containers work independently and jointly access the same system
software. In this way, for example, a container can be updated while the remaining components
continue to run. In addition, it also significantly facilitates the migration of applications between
different systems. The result is a further reduction in downtime and a high level of security of
the services run on the cloud infrastructure.

Consumer Applications
Introduction of DNSSEC/DANE security standard

In May 2016, GMX and WEB.DE introduced the network protocol DANE (DNS-based
Authentication of Named Entities) and thus once again raised the extremely high security level
already achieved.

When using DANE, certificates for encrypting an e-mail are checked for authenticity before the
connection is established. This improves secure transport between mail servers and prevents
the interception of e-mails by third parties.

Previously, e-mail transport was only encrypted to such a high degree between providers within
the “E-Mail made in Germany” network. However, this also meant that all participating servers
had to be located in Germany. The introduction of DANE means it is now possible to securely
communicate with providers who are not members of the “E-Mail made in Germany” network:
DANE ensures that certificates used for the transport encryption of e-mails with SSL/TLS
cannot be exchanged unnoticed by online criminals. To achieve this, the certificates are
checked directly on the DNS servers involved. The server operator therefore no longer has to
trust an external certification authority, which might have be compromised. With the aid of
DANE, senders and receivers can unambiguously identify each other and unauthorized third
parties can no longer read messages without being detected.

In the future, every transmission of an e-mail via WEB.DE and GMX will be automatically
secured using DANE provided the other site also supports this security technology.

Roll-out of Big Data analytics platform

United Internet sees a key competitive advantage in the consistent exploitation of the enormous
data volumes which result from its operating business. The aim is to understand customer
wishes more in detail, to be able to optimize the product portfolio and provide services more
efficiently.

To this end, the existing infrastructure was expanded in 2016 with the addition of a Big Data
platform and the implementation of new analysis processes.



2 ECONOMIC REPORT

2.1 GENERAL ECONOMIC AND SECTOR CONDITIONS
General economic development

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) repeatedly downgraded its forecasts for the global
economy throughout 2016. In the latest update to its “World Economic Outlook” on January 16,
2017, the Fund calculated growth for the global economy of 3.1% in 2015 (compared to 3.2%
in the previous year). This is 0.3 percentage points less than the IMF had forecast in January
2016. Global growth in the past year was thus the weakest since the global financial and
economic crisis of 2008 / 2009.

The Fund named the following reasons for this weaker-than-expected trend in 2016:

= Slowdown in development of emerging and developing countries
= Strong decline in commodity prices
= Uncertainty surrounding Brexit

From the point of view of United Internet, the economies of its current target markets performed
quite differently in the reporting period. Whereas the economic trend in the North American
target countries was much worse than expected, the performance of the European target
countries was more uneven.

With growth of 1.6% in 2016, the US economy fell short of its prior-year growth rate (2.6%) and
was also 1.0 percentage point below the IMF forecast issued at the beginning of the year
(outlook January 2016). Although economic growth of 1.3% in Canada was well above the prior-
year figure (0.9%), it still fell 0.4 percentage points short of original expectations. Mexico’s
growth rate of 2.2% was well down on the previous year (2.6%) and also 0.4 percentage points
below the IMF’s original forecast.

Although growth in the Eurozone of 1.7% was slower than in the previous year (2.0%), it
matched the original expectations of the IMF.

In France, the 1.3% increase in economic output was on a par with the previous year and in line
with original expectations. Spain was able to build on its prior-year performance with growth of
3.2% and exceeded the original expectations by 0.5 percentage points. Italy also exceeded its
prior-year level (0.7%) slightly with growth of 0.9%, but still fell 0.4 percentage points short of
expectations.

The economic trend in the non-euro country UK was also weaker than expected. Growth of
2.0% was down on the previous year (2.2%) and also 0.2% below original expectations — in part
due to the Brexit vote.

The IMF calculated economic growth of 1.7% for Germany, United Internet’s most important
market (sales share 2016: around 89%), in 2016. This is 0.2 percentage points more than in
2015 and in line with original expectations. The IMF's calculations for Germany largely
correspond with the preliminary figures of the country’s Federal Statistics Office (Destatis),
which calculated growth in gross domestic product (GDP) of 1.8% (after price and calendar
adjustments). This growth was driven in particular by consumer spending, as well as public
sector spending (including costs for the immigration of refugees).

Changes in growth forecasts made during 2016 for United Internet’'s key target countries and
regions



January April July| October Actual Change on January

forecast| forecast| forecast| forecast 2016 forecast
World 3.4% 3.2% 3.1% 3.1% 3.1% - 0.3 %-points
USA 2.6% 2.4% 2.2% 1.6% 1.6% - 1.0 %-points
Canada 1.7% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 1.3% - 0.4 %-points
Mexico 2.6% 2.4% 2.5% 2.1% 2.2% - 0.4 %-points
Eurozone 1.7% 1.5% 1.6% 1.7% 1.7% +/- 0.0 %-points
France 1.3% 1.1% 1.5% 1.3% 1.3% +/- 0.0 %-points
Spain 2.7% 2.6% 2.6% 3.1% 3.2% + 0.5 %-points
Italy 1.3% 1.0% 0.9% 0.8% 0.9% - 0.4 %-points
UK 2.2% 1.9% 1.7% 1.8% 2.0% - 0.2 %-points
Germany 1.7% 1.5% 1.6% 1.7% 1.7% +/- 0.0 %-points

Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook (Update), January 2017

Multi-period overview: GDP trend in United Internet’s key target countries and regions

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
World 3.1% 3.3% 3.4% 3.2% 3.1%
USA 2.8% 2.2% 2.4% 2.6% 1.6%
Canada 1.7% 2.0% 2.5% 0.9% 1.3%
Mexico 3.7% 1.4% 2.3% 2.6% 2.2%
Eurozone -0.7% - 0.5% 0.9% 2.0% 1.7%
France 0.0% 0.3% 0.2% 1.3% 1.3%
Spain -1.6% -1.2% 1.4% 3.2% 3.2%
Italy -2.5% -1.9% -0.4% 0.7% 0.9%
UK 0.3% 1.7% 2.9% 2.2% 2.0%
Germany 0.9% 0.2% 1.6% 1.5% 1.7%

Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook (Update), January 2017




Multi-period overview: development of price- and calendar-adjusted GDP in Germany

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

GDP

0.7%

0.6%

1.6%

1.5%

1.8%

Source: German Federal Statistical Office, January 2017

Development of sector / core markets

The German ICT market (ICT = Information and Communication Technology) developed in line
with expectations in fiscal year 2016. The industry association BITKOM announced expected
sales growth of 1.7% to € 160.5 billion in October 2016 and thus confirmed its original forecast.

The most important ICT markets for United Internet's business model are the German
broadband and mobile internet markets for its subscription-financed Access segment, and the
global cloud computing and German online advertising markets for its subscription- and ad-
financed Applications segment.

(Stationary) broadband market in Germany

In view of the high level of household coverage already achieved and the strong trend toward
mobile internet usage, demand for new landline broadband connections in Germany has
slowed since 2008. With expected growth of 0.5 million to 31.2 million in 2016, the number of
new connections was again well below previous record years and also 0.6 million below the
previous year (prior year: 1.1 million new connections). These figures were calculated by the
Association of Telecommunications and Value-Added Service Providers (Verband der Anbieter
von Telekommunikations- und Mehrwertdiensten — VATM) and Dialog Consult in their joint “TC
Market Analysis for Germany 2016” (October 19, 2016).

In its survey “German Entertainment and Media Outlook 2016-2020" (October 25, 2016),
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) expected sales of landline broadband connections to rise by
1.3% to around € 7.97 billion in 2016.

According to calculations of Dialog Consult / VATM, the average volume of data used is rising
much more strongly than the number of newly activated connections and sales of broadband
connections — as an indicator of continued growth in usage of e.g. IPTV and cloud applications
— with growth of 17.0% to 37.2 GB (per connection and month).

Key market figures: broadband access (landline) in Germany

2016 2015 Change
Broadband connections (in million) 31.2 30.7 +1.6%
Broadband revenues (in € billion) 7.97 7.87 +1.3%
Data volume per connection and month (in GB) 37.2 31.8 +17.0%

Source: Dialog Consult / VATM; PricewaterhouseCoopers




Mobile internet market in Germany

The German mobile internet market continues to display dynamic growth. According to
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC), the number of mobile internet users rose by 14.0% to 70.2
million in 2016.

At the same time, sales of mobile data services grew by 7.9% to € 7.36 billion in 2016.
According to forecasts of Dialog Consult / VATM, the average volume of data used (per

connection and month) — as an indicator of the growing use of mobile data services —rose even
more strongly in the same period by 22.9% to 510 MB.

Key market figures: mobile internet access (cellular) in Germany

2016 2015 Change
Mobile internet users (in million) 70.2 61.6 +14.0%
Mobile internet revenues (in € billion) 7.36 6.82 +7.9%
Data volume per connection and month (in MB) 510 415 +22.9%

Source: PricewaterhouseCoopers; Dialog Consult / VATM
Global cloud computing market

There was also further dynamic growth in the cloud computing market. In an update of its study
“Forecast Analysis: Public Cloud Services, Worldwide” (October 14, 2016), Gartner Inc.
forecast global growth for public cloud services of 17.2% in 2016, from $ 177.6 billion to $ 208.2
billion.

Cloud computing is no short-term trend, but represents a fundamental shift in the provision and
use of IT services. The aforementioned figures indicate the dynamic potential of this market. IT
users get better services for less money with cloud computing. Small and mid-size companies
in particular can gain access to IT applications which only major corporations could afford in

the past.

Key market figures: cloud computing worldwide
(in $ billion)

2016 2015 Change

Global sales of public cloud services 208.2 177.6 +17.2%
thereof business process services (BPaaS) 40.9 38.6 +6.0%
thereof application infrastructure services (PaaS) 7.2 5.7 + 26.3%
thereof application services (SaaS) 38.6 315 +22.5%
thereof management and security services 6.3 5.0 + 26.0%
thereof system infrastructure services (laaS) 24.9 175 +42.3%
thereof cloud advertising 90.3 79.4 +13.7%

Source: Gartner




German online advertising market

Despite the Brexit decision and resulting modest demand in the third quarter of 2016,
PricewaterhouseCoopers expects an increase in (net) revenues of the German online

advertising market of 7.4% to around € 6.55 billion in 2016.

As in the previous year, mobile online advertising and video advertising reported the strongest

growth of 31.6% and 18.2%, respectively.

Key market figures: online advertising in Germany
(in € billion)

2016 2015 Change

Online advertising revenues 6.55 6.10 +7.4%
thereof search marketing 3.24 3.01 +7.6%
thereof display advertising 1.44 1.41 +2.1%
thereof affiliate / classifieds 0.98 0.97 +1.0%
thereof mobile online advertising 0.50 0.38 + 31.6%
thereof video advertising 0.39 0.33 +18.2%

Source: PricewaterhouseCoopers

Legal conditions / significant events

In 2016, the legal parameters for United Internet's business activities remained largely
unchanged from fiscal year 2015 and thus had no significant influence on the development of

the United Internet Group.

There were also no significant events in fiscal 2016 which had a material effect on the

development of business.




2.2 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Use and definition of relevant financial performance measures

In order to ensure the clear and transparent presentation of United Internet’s business trend,
the Group’s annual financial statements and interim financial statements include key financial
performance measures — in addition to the disclosures required by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) — such as EBITDA, the EBITDA margin, EBIT, the EBIT margin
and free cash flow.

United Internet defines these measures as follows:

= EBIT: Earnings before interest and taxes represents the operating result disclosed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

= EBIT margin: Presents the ratio of EBIT to sales.

= EBITDA: Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization are calculated as
EBIT / operating result plus the depreciation and amortization (disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements) of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, as well as
assets capitalized in the course of company acquisitions.

= EBITDA margin: Presents the ratio of EBITDA to sales.

= Free cash flow: Calculated as cash flow from operating activities (disclosed in the
consolidated financial statement), less capital expenditure for intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment, plus payments from the disposal of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment.

Insofar as necessary for a clear and transparent presentation, these indicators are adjusted for
special items. Such special items usually refer solely to those effects capable of restricting the
validity of the key financial performance measures with regard to the Group’s financial and
earnings performance — due to their nature, frequency and/or magnitude. All special items are
presented and explained for the purpose of reconciliation with the unadjusted financial figures
in the relevant section of the financial statements.

In order to ensure comparability with the guidance issued at the beginning of 2016, currency-
adjusted sales and earnings figures are calculated by converting the sales and earnings figures
of the current reporting period with the standard conversion rates used at year-end 2015.



Actual and forecast development

United Internet can look back on a successful fiscal year 2016. The forecasts published at the
beginning of the year and updated during the year were met or exceeded.

Forecast development

United Internet published its guidance for the fiscal year 2016 in its annual financial statements
2015 and provided more specific guidance during the course of the year as follows.

Fiscal year Forecast 2016 (of Specification Specification
2015 03/2016) (of 08/2016) (of 11/2016)
Customer + approx.

15.97 million + approx. 800,000 + 940,000-960,000

contracts 900,000

€ 3.94 — € 3.96 billion
Sales € 3.716 billion approx. € 4 billion (currency-adjusted:
€ 3.96 — € 3.98 bhillion)

€ 835 — € 845 million
EBITDA € 757.2 million® | approx. € 850 million (currency-adjusted:
€ 845 — € 855 million)

@ Without special items from sale of Goldbach shares and part of stake in virtual minds (EBITDA effect: € +14.0 million)

Significant growth was also forecast for the financial KPIs EBIT and EPS (earnings per share)
—in ordinary business (without special items) — compared to the key figures for fiscal year 2015
adjusted for proceeds from the sale of Goldbach shares and part of the company’s stake in
virtual minds.

Special items

In order to ensure the comparability of forecast KPIs and those actually achieved, they are first
adjusted for special items.

These special items only refer to those effects capable of restricting the validity of the key
financial performance measures with regard to the company’s financial and earnings
performance — due to their nature, frequency and/or magnitude.

Key earnings figures for 2015 and 2016 were influenced by special items with opposing effects:

= infiscal year 2015, special items from the sale of shares (Goldbach shares and part of stake
in virtual minds) had a positive impact on key earnings figures (EBITDA, EBIT, EBT effect =
€ +14.0 million; EPS effect = € +0.07), whereas

= infiscal year 2016, special items from writedowns on financial assets (especially impairment
of shares held by United Internet in Rocket Internet SE) had a negative impact on key
earnings figures (EBT effect: € -254.9 million; EPS effect: € -1.25).



Reconciliation of EBITDA, EBIT and EPS with figures adjusted for special items
(in € million; EPS in €)

Fiscal year 2016 Fiscal year 2015
EBITDA 840.6 771.2
Special items from share sales (2015) - -14.0
EBITDA before special items 840.6 757.2
EBIT 647.2 555.7
Special items from share sales (2015) - -14.0
EBIT before special items 647.2 541.7
EPS 0.88 1.80
Special items from writedowns (2016) +1.25 -
Special items from share sales (2015) - - 0.07
EPS before special items 2.13 1.73

Actual development

United Internet continued to invest heavily in new customer relationships in fiscal year 2016
and succeeded in raising the number of fee-based customer contracts organically by 1 million
contracts, thus easily exceeding its forecasts (March forecast: + approx. 800,000; August
specification: + approx. 900,000; November specification: + 940,000 — 960,000).

Despite the further decline in the value of the British pound following the Brexit decision,
consolidated sales rose by 6.3% (currency-adjusted: 6.8%) — from € 3.716 billion to the new
record figure of € 3.949 billion. This figure is thus within the targeted range of the most recent
forecast (€ 3.94 — € 3.96 billion).

Despite heavier than planned investment in customer growth and the related increase in
customer acquisition costs, EBITDA rose by 11.0% (currency-adjusted: 11.8%), from € 757.2
million (comparable prior-year figure without special items) to € 840.6 million. This figure is thus
also within the targeted range of the most recent forecast (€ 835 - € 845 million).

There was also a strong year-on-year improvement in EBIT and EPS, as forecast. EBIT
increased by 19.5%, from € 541.7 million (comparable prior-year figure) to € 647.2 million,
while EPS rose 23.1% from € 1.73 in the previous year (comparable prior-year figure) to € 2.13
(without special items).

The key earnings figures stated above also include costs for major M&A projects in fiscal year
2016, i.e. especially the investment of Warburg Pincus in the “Business Applications” division
and the takeover of Strato (approval by the anti-trust authorities still pending at the end of the
reporting period, but granted on February 10, 2017).



Summary: actual and forecast development of business in 2016

ﬁs;??él;s; Forecast 2016 Specification Specification fis ;?32';

2015 (of 03/2016) (of 08/2016) (of 11/2016) 2016

Customer contracts 15.97 million +8%%p6%)8 +9%%p{)%)8 + 940,000-960,000 + 1.00 million
ADDIOX € 3.94 — € 3.96 bhillion € 3.949 billion

Sales € 3.716 billion € 4%”06 (currency-adjusted: | (currency-adjusted:
€ 3.96 — € 3.98 hillion) € 3.967 billion)

ADDrOX € 835 — € 845 million € 840.6 million

EBITDA € 757.2 million® € 850 rr:ﬁllior; (currency-adjusted: | (currency-adjusted:
€ 845 — € 855 million) € 846.7 million)

@ Without effects from sale of Goldbach shares and part of stake in virtual minds (EBITDA and EBIT effect: € +14.0 million; EPS effect:

£€0.07)




Segment development
Access segment

The Access segment comprises the Group’s fee-based landline and mobile access products,
including the respective applications (such as home networks, online storage, telephony, video-
on-demand or IPTV). In addition to these products for home users and small firms, United
Internet also offers data and network solutions for SMEs, as well as infrastructure services for
large corporations. With a current length of 41,644 km (prior year: 40,825 km), United Internet
owns Germany’s second-largest fiber-optic network. It is being constantly expanded.

United Internet operates exclusively in Germany in its Access segment, where it is one of the
leading providers. The company uses its own landline network and also purchases standardized
network services from various pre-service providers. These are enhanced with end-user
devices, self-developed applications and services from the company’s own “Internet Factory” in
order to differentiate them from the competition.

Access products are marketed by the well-known brands GMX, WEB.DE and 1&1 which enable
the company to offer a comprehensive range of products while also targeting specific customer
groups.

United Internet continued to invest heavily in new customer relationships in its fiscal year 2016.
The number of fee-based contracts in the Access segment rose by 920,000 contracts to a total
of 8.72 million. In the company’s Mobile Internet business, 830,000 contracts were added —
raising the total number of customers to 4.31 million. The number of complete DSL contracts
was raised by 150,000 to a total of 4.23 million customer contracts. As expected, the number of
customer contracts for those business models being phased out (T-DSL and R-DSL) continued
to fall slightly (-60,000 customer relationships). In total, the number of DSL contracts therefore
grew by 90,000 contracts to 4.41 million.

Development of Access contracts in fiscal year 2016

(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015 Change
Access, total contracts 8.72 7.80 +0.92
thereof Mobile Internet 431 3.48 +0.83
thereof DSL complete (ULL) 4.23 4.08 +0.15
thereof T-DSL / R-DSL 0.18 0.24 -0.06

Development of Access contracts in the 4th quarter of 2016

(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016 Sep. 30, 2016 Change
Access, total contracts 8.72 8.50 +0.22
thereof Mobile Internet 4.31 4.10 +0.21
thereof DSL complete (ULL) 4.23 4.20 +0.03
thereof T-DSL / R-DSL 0.18 0.20 -0.02




Thanks to this dynamic customer growth, sales of the Access segment rose in line with
expectations by 6.4% in 2016, from € 2,742.6 million in the previous year to € 2,917.2 million.

In the fiscal years 2015 and 2016, key earnings figures were affected by various factors.
Earnings in 2015 were positively influenced by a disproportionately high EBITDA contribution
from key account business (1&1 Versatel) in the fourth quarter of the previous year, while there
was an opposing burden on key earnings figures for 2016 from one-off expenses for the
migration of DSL connections purchased as a pre-service from the Telefonica landline network
to other DSL networks started in the fourth quarter of 2016. This migration was necessitated
by Telefonica Deutschland’s decision to scale down its own landline network, meaning that it
can no longer be considered as a pre-service provider in the future.

Specifically, segment EBITDA increased by 6.8% from € 492.1 million in the previous year to
€ 525.6 million, while segment EBIT rose by 15.9% from € 336.4 million in the previous year
to € 389.9 million.

As a result, the EBITDA margin improved from 17.9% in the previous year to 18.0% in fiscal
year 2016 and the EBIT margin from 12.3% to 13.4%.

All customer acquisition costs for DSL and Mobile Internet products, as well as costs for the
migration of resale DSL connections to complete DSL packages (ULL = Unbundled Local Loop)
and upgrades to VDSL connections, continue to be charged directly as expenses.

As a result of the expansion of business and staff transfers from the Applications segment, the
number of employees in this segment rose by 10.7% to 3,478 as of December 31, 2016 (prior
year: 3,142).

Key sales and earnings figures in the Access segment

(in € million)
2016 2015 Change

Sales 2,917.2 2,742.6 + 6.4%
EBITDA 525.6 492.1 +6.8%
EBIT 389.9 336.4 +15.9%
Quarterly development; change on prior-year quarter
(in € million)

Q1 2016 Q2 2016 Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q4 2015 Change
Sales 709.7 725.0 732.5 750.0 707.4 +6.0%
EBITDA 124.3 124.7 1355 1411 147.5 -4.3%
EBIT 90.5 90.6 101.4 107.4 109.5 -1.9%




Multi-period overview: development of key sales and earnings figures

(in € million)

2012 2013 2014® 2015 2016
Sales 1,586.1 1,788.3 2,135.1 2,742.6 2,917.2
EBITDA 191.8 245.4 330.8 492.1 525.6
EBITDA margin 12.1% 13.7% 15.5% 17.9% 18.0%
EBIT 164.3 217.4 267.8 336.4 389.9
EBIT margin 10.4% 12.2% 12.5% 12.3% 13.4%

® 2014 without one-off income from Versatel acquisition (EBITDA and EBIT effect: €+112.6 million)

Applications segment

The Applications segment comprises the Group’s application business — whether ad-financed
or via fee-based subscriptions. These applications include domains, home pages, webhosting,
servers and e-shops, Personal Information Management applications (e-mail, to-do lists,
appointments, addresses), group work, online storage and office software. The applications are
developed by the company’s “Internet Factory” or in cooperation with partner firms and operated
at the company’s data centers. United Internet AG also offers its customers performance-based
advertising and sales platforms on the internet via the Sedo and affilinet brands.

In its Applications segment, United Internet is also a leading global player with activities in
European countries (Germany, France, the UK, Italy, Austria, Poland, Switzerland and Spain)
as well as North America (Canada, Mexico and the USA).

Applications are marketed via the differently positioned brands GMX, mail.com, WEB.DE, 1&1,
Arsys, Fasthosts, home.pl, InterNetX, and united-domains.

In the field of Business Applications, the main focus in fiscal year 2016 was on the sale of
additional features to existing customers (e.g. further domains, e-shops and business apps), as
well as the acquisition of high-value customer relationships. Nevertheless, the number of fee-
based contracts for Business Applications was also increased by 60,000 contracts to 6.05
million in fiscal year 2016.

Development of Business Applications contracts in fiscal year 2016

(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015 Change
Business Applications, total contracts 6.05 5.99 +0.06
thereof “domestic” 2.34 2.35 -0.01
thereof “foreign” 3.71 3.64 +0.07




Development of Business Applications contracts in the fourth quarter of 2016

(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016| Sep. 30, 2016 Change
Business Applications, total contracts 6.05 6.05 +/- 0.00
thereof “domestic” 2.34 2.34 +/- 0.00
thereof “foreign” 3.71 3.71 +/- 0.00

In the field of Consumer Applications, the main focus in fiscal year 2016 was on monetizing
ad-financed accounts. United Internet therefore limited ad space for its own pay products once
again in 2016. Despite this limitation, the number of pay accounts was raised by 20,000
contracts to 2.20 million. At the same time, the number of free accounts rose by 1.14 million to
34.29 million in the reporting period. Consequently, the total number of Consumer Accounts
increased by 1.16 million to 36.49 million accounts in fiscal year 2016.

Development of Consumer Applications contracts in fiscal year 2016

(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015 Change
Consumer Applications, total accounts 36.49 35.33 +1.16
thereof with Premium Mail subscription 1.72 1.77 -0.05
thereof with Value-Added subscription 0.48 0.41 +0.07
thereof free accounts 34.29 33.15 +1.14
Development of Consumer Applications contracts in the fourth quarter of 2016
(in million)
Dec. 31, 2016 Sep. 30, 2016 Change
Consumer Applications, total accounts 36.49 35.64 +0.85
thereof with Premium Mail subscription 1.72 1.73 -0.01
thereof with Value-Added subscription 0.48 0.47 +0.01
thereof free accounts 34.29 33.44 +0.85

By successfully expanding business with existing customers, focusing on high-quality customer
relationships, increasingly monetizing free accounts via advertising, and the first-time
consolidation of home.pl, sales of the Applications segment rose by 6.9% in fiscal year 2016
(currency-adjusted: 8.8%), from € 1,001.2 million in the previous year to € 1,070.7 million in
2016 — despite the further devaluation of the British pound following the Brexit decision. As
already announced in the interim statement on the first nine months of 2016, weaker than
expected revenues from online advertising in the third quarter of 2016 were largely offset by
“catch-up effects” on the part of advertisers in the final quarter of the year. Foreign business
grew by 10.7% (currency-adjusted: 15.5%), from € 383.6 million to € 424.7 million.



Key earnings figures easily outpaced this growth in sales: for example, segment EBITDA rose
by 18.8% (currency-adjusted: 21.0%) from EUR 281.9 million in the previous year to € 335.0
million, and segment EBIT by 25.1% from € 222.5 million in the previous year to

€ 278.3 million.

As a result, the EBITDA margin improved from 28.2% in the previous year to 31.3% in fiscal

year 2016 and the EBIT margin from 22.2% to 26.0%.

Customer acquisition costs in this segment also continue to be charged directly as expenses.

Due in part to internal staff transfers to the Access segment, the number of employees in this
segment fell by 10.9% to 4,406 (prior year: 4,945).

Key sales and earnings figures in the Applications segment

(in € million)
2016 2015 Change

Sales 1,070.7 1,001.2 +6.9%
EBITDA 335.0 281.9 + 18.8%
EBIT 278.3 222.5 +25.1%
Quarterly development; change on prior-year quarter
(in € million)

Q1 2016 Q2 2016 Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q4 2015 Change
Sales 268.8 266.2 258.5 277.2 259.5 +6.8%
EBITDA 804 75.0 81.2 98.4 73.3 +34.2%
EBIT 65.9 61.1 67.5 83.8 58.9 +42.3%
Multi-period overview: development of key sales and earnings figures
(in € million)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Sales 810.2 867.0 929.4 1,001.2 1,070.7
EBITDA 132.1 168.7 228.6 281.9 335.0
EBITDA margin 16.3% 19.5% 24.6% 28.2% 31.3%
EBIT® 66.6 102.1 170.9 222.5 278.3
EBIT margin 8.2% 11.8% 18.4% 22.2% 26.0%

@ 2012 without special items (Sedo impairment charges: EBIT effect: € -46.3 million)




Group investments

United Internet AG continued to optimize its investment portfolio in the fiscal year 2016. New
strategic investments were made (Tele Columbus; Strato), stakes in existing holdings were
decreased (investment of Warburg Pincus in the “Business Applications” division), and
investments sold (Hipay).

Significant changes in investments

Acquisition of a 25.11% stake in Tele Columbus

Following the purchase of a 9.8% stake in Tele Columbus AG, United Internet contractually
secured the acquisition of a further share package amounting to approx. 15.31% of shares in
Tele Columbus on February 10, 2016 via the subsidiary United Internet Ventures AG. At the
time, the closing of the acquisition was subject to approval by the German Federal Cartel Office
(“Bundeskartellamt”). This approval was granted on March 7, 2016.

After closing the acquisition, United Internet has a total indirect shareholding of 25.11% in Tele
Columbus as of December 31, 2016.

United Internet believes that Tele Columbus AG is well positioned with attractive market
opportunities. As a strategic investor, it plans to accompany the company’s ongoing
development and benefit from its growth in value.

United Internet AG does not, however, currently intend to acquire an equity stake of 30% or
more in Tele Columbus AG — which would oblige it to submit a mandatory bid to all other
shareholders of Tele Columbus AG — nor to make a voluntary takeover bid.

Sale of Hipay shares

On May 2, 2016, United Internet sold its stake (8.37%) in the listed company Hipay Group S.A.,
France. The share sale resulted in proceeds of around € 4.5 million.

Warburg Pincus acquires stake in United Internet’s “Business Applications” division as
part of strategic alliance

On November 8, 2016, United Internet AG and WP XII Venture Holdings S.a.r.l., an affiliate of
private equity funds managed by Warburg Pincus LLC (together: “Warburg Pincus”), signed an
agreement regarding a 33.33% stake of Warburg Pincus in the United Internet division
Business Applications.

The transaction values the business currently pooled by United Internet within the company
1&1 Internet SE at € 2.55 billion. This corresponds to a multiple of approx. 12.5 times the
division’s planned EBITDA result for fiscal 2016.

The “Business Applications” division pooled under 1&1 Internet SE (part of the overall
“Applications” segment of United Internet) includes the hosting business with domains, home
pages, webhosting, servers and e-shops, professional e-mail solutions, online storage and
marketing tools. 1&1’s Business Applications products are mainly targeted at freelancers and
SMEs in numerous European countries (Germany, France, UK, Italy, Austria, Poland, Spain)
as well as North America (Canada, Mexico, USA). The “Business Applications” division also
comprises the foreign companies belonging to 1&1 Internet SE as well as their subsidiaries
(e.g. Fasthosts, Arsys, home.pl, InterNetX, united-domains and Sedo) and the respective
service companies.



The investment of Warburg Pincus was made via a newly founded holding company in the first
guarter of 2017. A purchase price of up to € 450 million has been agreed for the 33.33% stake.
This is based on the division’s equity value of € 1.35 billion. This corresponds to the division’s
enterprise value after deducting internal loan receivables of United Internet AG totaling € 1.20
billion which arose from United Internet AG’s transfer of the business to the new structure and
are subject to standard market interest rates.

After closing the transaction, United Internet AG remains the majority shareholder with a
66.67% stake in the newly founded holding company and will continue to fully consolidate its
Business Applications division in its annual and quarterly financial statements.

As part of its strategic alliance, Warburg Pincus will support the management team of the
“Business Applications” division. To this end, Mr. René Obermann, Managing Director of
Warburg Pincus International LLC, will join the Supervisory Board of the Business Applications
division.

The common goal of the partnership is to extend the division’s market leadership in Europe
with top-quality and innovative webhosting products and cloud applications, as well as first-
class customer service. With its global market expertise and access to experts in the sector,
Warburg Pincus is expected to make a valuable contribution to the division’s organic growth,
its development of new products and services, and any potential mergers and acquisitions in
the future.

The transaction offers 1&1 Internet SE flexibility with regard to its future strategic options,
including a potential IPO in the coming years.

The transaction was subject to approval by the relevant anti-trust authorities. The last
outstanding approval was granted by the authorities on December 16, 2016. The transaction
could therefore be closed as planned in the first quarter of 2017.

Complete takeover of competitor Strato

On December 15, 2016, United Internet AG signed an agreement with the owner of Strato AG,
Deutsche Telekom AG, regarding the acquisition of Strato AG.

Based in Berlin, Strato employs over 500 people with operations mainly in Germany and the
Netherlands. Strato’s annual revenue for fiscal year 2016 is expected to be around € 127 million
with anticipated EBITDA in 2016 of around € 48.5 million.

The Strato product portfolio ranges from domains, e-mail packages, complete website
packages, webshops, and servers, to online storage and individual high-end hosting solutions.
The business operates from the company’s two own high-performance data centers in Berlin
and Karlsruhe.

The purchase price for 100% of Strato’s shares is around € 600 million and will be settled in
cash. A partial amount of up to € 566 million is payable after the expected closing in the first
half of 2017. A further amount of up to € 34 million is payable at a later point, but subject to
certain performance goals.

The acquisition of 100% of shares in Strato AG will be made via a newly founded holding
structure as part of the recently announced investment of Warburg Pincus in United Internet’s
Business Applications division. The purchase price tranche of € 566 million due in 2017 at the
holding structure level will be financed by an internal loan from United Internet of € 350 million
as well as by prorated equity capital contributions of United Internet and Warburg Pincus. In
the course of the Strato acquisition, Warburg Pincus is to retain its 33.33% stake in United
Internet’s “Business Applications” division in accordance with the partnership agreement.



By acquiring its competitor Strato, United Internet will be able to expand its leading market
position in the European hosting and cloud application business and drive the consolidation of
a market which is currently still strongly fragmented.

At the end of the reporting period on December 31, 2016, the share purchase was still subject
to approval by the German Federal Cartel Office (approval granted on February 10, 2017).

In addition to its (fully consolidated) core operating companies in the Access and Applications
segments, United Internet also held investments in the following companies as of December
31, 2016.

Significant investments in listed companies

United Internet has held a stake in Hi-Media S. A., Paris / France since the transfer of the
Group’s Display Marketing business “AdLINK Media” to Hi-Media in July 2009. As of December
31, 2016, this shareholding amounted to 10.46%. The company’'s market capitalization on
December 31, 2016 amounted to around € 21 million (prior year: € 13 million).

United Internet has held an investment in Rocket Internet SE since August 2014. As of
December 31, 2016 the share of voting rights amounted to 8.31%. The company’s market
capitalization as of December 31, 2016 was around € 3.161 billion (prior year: € 4.664 billion).

In April 2015, United Internet announced that it had acquired an equity stake in Drillisch AG.
As of December 31, 2016, the share of voting rights amounted to 20.11%. The company’s
market capitalization as of December 31, 2016 was around € 2.240 billion (prior year: € 2.141
billion).

In February 2016, United Internet announced its investment in Tele Columbus AG. As of
December 31, 2016, the share of voting rights amounted to 25.11%. The company’s market
capitalization as of December 31, 2016 was around € 1.003 billion (prior year: € 1.193 billion).

Minority holdings in partner companies

United Internet has held a stake in virtual minds AG since February 2008 (main activity: media
technologies, digital advertising and hosting). As of December 31, 2016, United Internet’s share
of voting rights amounted to 25.10%. Via its ADITION brand also an adserving supplier of
United Internet portals, virtual minds generated a positive result once again in its fiscal year
2016.

In November 2010, United Internet acquired a stake in ProfitBricks GmbH (main activity: laaS
solutions: laaS = Infrastructure-as-a-Service). As of December 31, 2016, United Internet’s share
of voting rights amounted to 30.20%. ProfitBricks closed its fiscal year 2016 with a negative
result.

In July 2013, United Internet acquired a stake in Open-Xchange AG (main activity: e-mail and
collaboration solutions). United Internet has already been working successfully with the
company for many years in its Applications business. As of December 31, 2016, United
Internet’s share of voting rights amounted to 27.28%. Open-Xchange closed its fiscal year 2016
with a positive result.

In February 2014, United Internet acquired a stake of 25.01% in ePages GmbH (main activity:
e-shop solutions). In addition to the equity stake, ePages and United Internet’s subsidiary 1&1
Internet SE agreed a long-term cooperation contract for the use of ePages solutions. As part
of this cooperation, there is a joint technology platform for 1&1 E-Shops. As of December 31,
2016, United Internet’s share of voting rights amounted to 25.01%. ePages posted a slightly
positive result in its fiscal year 2016.



In April 2014, United Internet acquired a stake in uberall GmbH (main activity: online listings).
In addition, uberall and United Internet’s subsidiary 1&1 Internet SE agreed a long-term
cooperation contract for the use of uberall solutions. As of December 31, 2016, the share of
voting rights amounted to 30.34%. uberall is still in the start-up phase and posted a negative
result in its fiscal year 2016.

Share and dividend
Share

The strong decline in the price of the United Internet share failed to reflect the company’s
successful performance in fiscal year 2016. Specifically, the share price fell by 27.1% to € 37.10
in fiscal year 2016 (December 31, 2015: € 50.91). The share thus underperformed in relation to
both the DAX (+6.9%) and TecDAX (-1.0%) indices.

There was a corresponding decrease in the market capitalization of United Internet AG from
around € 10.44 billion in the previous year to around € 7.61 billion as of December 31, 2016.

In fiscal year 2016, average daily trading via the XETRA electronic computer trading system
amounted to around 407,000 shares (prior year: 355,000) with an average value of € 16.30
million (prior year: € 15.28 million).

Multi-period overview: share performance
(in €; all stock exchange figures are based on Xetra trading)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Year-end 16.31 30.92 37.49 50.91 37.10
Performance +18.2% + 89.6% +21.2% + 35.8% -27.1%
Year-high 17.55 31.00 37.95 51.94 49.89
vear-low 12.49 16.11 28.35 36.17 34.42
Average daily turnover 4,906,732 | 8,554,509 | 13,731,799 | 15,279,407 | 16,301,156
Average daily turnover (units) 332,898 367,102 420,640 354,904 407,372
Number of shares at year-end 215 million | 194 million | 205 million | 205 million | 205 million
Market value at year-end 3.51 billion | 6.00 billion | 7.69 billion | 10.44 billion | 7.61 billion
EPS 0.56 1.07 2.28 1.80 0.88
Adjusted EPS® 0.70 1.07 1.46 1.73 2.13

@ Without special items: 2012 without negative one-off effect from impairment charges (EPS effect: € -0.23) and without positive one-off effect
from sale of freenet shares (EPS effect: € +0.09); 2014 without positive one-off effect from Versatel acquisition and portfolio optimization
(EPS effect: € +0.82); 2015 without effects from sale of Goldbach shares and part of stake in virtual minds (EPS effect: € +0.07); 2016
without negative one-off effect from impairment (EPS effect: € -1.25)



Share data

Share type Registered common stock
Notional share of capital stock €1.00

German Securities Identification Number (WKN) 508903
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) DE0005089031
Ticker symbol Xetra UTDI

Reuters ticker symbol UTDI.DE
Bloomberg ticker symbol UTDI.GR

Segment Prime Standard
Index TecDAX
Sector Software

Shareholder structure

Shareholder Shareholding
Ralph Dommermuth

- Ralph Dommermuth GmbH & Co. KG Beteiligungsgesellschaft (39.02%) 40.00%

- RD Holding GmbH & Co. KG (0.98%)

Allianz Global Investors 4.78%
Flossbach von Storch 3.09%
BlackRock 3.05%
United Internet (treasury stock) 1.64%
Free float 47.44%

As of December 31, 2016; figures based on the last respective notification of voting rights

Dividend

In fiscal year 2016, United Internet continued to pursue its shareholder-friendly dividend policy
based on continuity. The company’s Annual Shareholders' Meeting on May 19, 2016 voted to
accept the proposal of the Management Board and Supervisory Board to pay a dividend of
€ 0.70 per share for fiscal year 2015 (prior year: € 0.60). The total dividend payment of € 142.9
million (prior year: € 122.3 million) was made on May 20, 2016. The dividend payout ratio
amounted to 39.0% of consolidated net income after minority interests for 2015 and was thus at
the upper end of the range targeted by the company’s dividend policy (20-40% of adjusted
consolidated net income after taxes, unless funds are required for further company
development).

For fiscal year 2016, the Management Board will propose to the Supervisory Board a dividend
of € 0.80 per share. The Management Board and Supervisory Board will discuss this dividend
proposal at the Supervisory Board meeting on March 22, 2017 (and thus after the preparation
deadline for this Management Report of March 17, 2017). The Annual Shareholders' Meeting
of United Internet AG on May 18, 2017 will then vote on the joint proposal of the Management
Board and Supervisory Board.



On the basis of 201.6 million shares with dividend entitlement (as of December 31, 2016), the
total dividend payment for fiscal year 2016 would amount to € 161.3 million. This would
correspond to 37.2% of consolidated net income after minority interests for 2016 (€ 433.9
million) and thus lie at the upper end of the targeted payout range. Based on the year-end 2016
price of the United Internet share, the dividend yield would amount to 2.2%.

Multi-period overview: dividend development

For 2012| For2013| For2014| For2015| For2016®
Dividend per share (in €) 0.30 0.40 0.60 0.70 0.80
Dividend payment (in € million) 58.0 77.5 122.3 142.9 161.3
Payout ratio 53.6% 37.4% 27.3% 39.0% 90.0%
Adjusted payout ratio®@ 37.5% 37.4% 43.0% 39.0% 37.2%
Dividend yield® 1.8% 1.3% 1.6% 1.4% 2.2%

(@ Subject to approval of Supervisory Board and Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2017

@ Without special items: Sedo impairment charges (2012); one-off income from Versatel acquisition and portfolio optimization (2014); Rocket
impairment charges (2016)

@  As of: December 31

Annual Shareholders' Meeting 2016

The Annual Shareholders' Meeting of United Internet AG was held in Frankfurt am Main on May
19, 2016. A total of 67% of capital stock was represented. The shareholders adopted all
resolutions on the agenda requiring voting with large majorities.

Capital stock and treasury shares

On June 30, 2016, the Management Board of United Internet AG resolved to launch a new share
buyback program. In the course of this new share buyback program, up to 5,000,000 company
shares (corresponding to approx. 2.44% of capital stock) are to be bought back via the stock
exchange.

The buyback is based on the authorization of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of May 22, 2014
to buy back treasury shares representing up to 10% of the company’s capital stock. The
authorization was issued for the period up to September 22, 2017. At the same time, the
previous share buyback program adopted by the company’s Management Board on June 13,
2014 — also on the basis of the authorization granted by the Annual Shareholders' Meeting of
May 22, 2014 — was ended.

Within the framework of these two share buyback programs, a total of 3,000,000 treasury shares
were repurchased in fiscal year 2016 at an average price of € 37.39 and with a total volume of
€ 112.17 million.

As of December 31, 2016, United Internet held 3,370,943 treasury shares (December 31, 2015:
917,859), corresponding to 1.64% of the current capital stock of € 205 million. The net increase
in treasury stock over the year results from the aforementioned buyback of treasury shares and
— with an opposing effect — the issue of shares for employee stock ownership plans.



Investor Relations

In fiscal 2016, the Management Board and Investor Relations department of United Internet AG
once again provided institutional and private investors with regular and comprehensive
information. Information was provided to the capital market via the quarterly statements, half-
yearly financial report and annual report, as well as at press and analyst conferences. The
company’s management and Investor Relations department explained the company’s strategy
and financial results in numerous one-on-one discussions at the company’'s offices in
Montabaur, as well as at roadshows and conferences in Germany, Finland, France, the UK,
Canada, the Netherlands, Switzerland, Spain and the USA. Around 30 national and international
investment banks are in contact with the company’s Investor Relations department and publish
regular studies and comments on the company’s progress and share performance. Apart from
such one-on-one meetings, shareholders and potential future investors can also receive the
latest news on the company around the clock via the company’s website (www.united-
internet.de).



2.3 POSITION OF THE GROUP
Group’s earnings position

Consolidated sales of the United Internet Group rose by 6.3% in the fiscal year 2016 (currency-
adjusted: 6.8%), from € 3.716 billion in the previous year to the new record figure of € 3.949
billion — despite the further decline in the value of the British pound following the Brexit decision.
Sales outside Germany increased by 10.7% (currency-adjusted: 15.5%), from € 383.6 million
in the previous year to € 424.7 million.

United Internet once again invested heavily in new customer relationships in its fiscal year
2016. As a result, the number of fee-based customer contracts was increased by 1.00 million
(prior year: 0.93 million organic growth, without the home.pl takeover and contract
streamlining). This customer growth was driven in particular by the Access segment, in which
United Internet achieved an increase of 920,000 customer contracts (830,000 Mobile Internet
contracts and 90,000 DSL connections). In the Applications segment, a further 80,000 fee-
based customer contracts and 1.14 million ad-financed free accounts were added.

All customer acquisition costs for Access and Applications products, as well as costs for the
migration of resale DSL connections to complete DSL packages and upgrades to VDSL
connections, continue to be charged directly as expenses.

The cost of sales increased almost in line with sales from € 2,437.2 million (65.6% of sales)
in the previous year to € 2,594.6 million (65.7% of sales) in fiscal year 2016. Consequently,
gross margin was also virtually unchanged at 34.3% (prior year: 34.4%).

Sales and marketing expenses decreased from € 557.2 million (15.0% of sales) in the
previous year to € 523.6 million (13.3% of sales).

General and administrative expenses rose more slowly than sales, from € 182.2 million
(4.9% of sales) in the previous year to € 183.6 million (4.7% of sales) in 2016.

Multi-period overview: development of key cost items

(in € million)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Cost of sales 1,574.7 1,742.8 2,034.5 2,437.2 2,594.6
Cost of sales ratio 65.7% 65.6% 66.4% 65.6% 65.7%
Gross margin 34.3% 34.4% 33.6% 34.4% 34.3%
Selling expenses 461.7 481.4 481.3 557.2 523.6
Selling expenses ratio 19.3% 18.1% 15.7% 15.0% 13.3%
Administrative expenses 112.1 120.4 136.9 182.2 183.6
Administrative expenses ratio 4.7% 4.5% 4.5% 4.9% 4.7%




Key earnings figures for the fiscal years 2015 and 2016 were influenced by special items with

opposing effects:

= infiscal year 2015, special items from the sale of shares (Goldbach shares and part of stake
in virtual minds) had a positive impact on key earnings figures (EBITDA, EBIT, EBT effect =
€ +14.0 million; net income effect = € +13.7 million; EPS effect = € +0.07), whereas

= infiscal year 2016, special items from writedowns on financial assets (especially impairment
of shares held by United Internet in Rocket Internet SE) had a negative impact on key
earnings figures (EBT, net income effect: € -245.9 million; EPS effect: € -1.25).

Reconciliation of EBITDA, EBIT, EBT, net income and EPS with figures adjusted for special

items
(in € million; EPS in €)

Fiscal year 2016

Fiscal year 2015

EBITDA 840.6 771.2
Special items from share sales (2015) - -14.0
EBITDA before special items 840.6 757.2
EBIT 647.2 555.7
Special items from share sales (2015) - -14.0
EBIT before special items 647.2 541.7
EBT 367.1 535.1
Special items from writedowns (2016) + 254.9 -
Special items from share sales (2015) - -14.0
EBT before special items 622.0 521.1
Net income 179.2 366.6
Special items from writedowns (2016) + 254.9 -
Special items from share sales (2015) - -13.7
Net income before special items 434.1 352.9
EPS 0.88 1.80
Special items from writedowns (2016) +1.25 -
Special items from share sales (2015) - - 0.07
EPS before special items 2.13 1.73
EPS before PPA 1.04 1.96
Special items from writedowns (2016) +1.25 -
Special items from share sales (2015) - - 0.07
EPS before PPA before special items 2.29 1.89

Despite stronger than planned customer growth and the related increase in customer
acquisition costs, EBITDA rose by 11.0% (currency-adjusted: 11.8%), from € 757.2 million
(comparable prior-year figure) to € 840.6 million. EBIT increased by 19.5%, from € 541.7 million

(comparable prior-year figure) to € 647.2 million.




As a result, the EBITDA margin improved from 20.4% in the previous year to 21.3% in the
fiscal year 2016 and the EBIT margin from 14.6% to 16.4%.

Without consideration of special items in 2016, EBT rose by 19.4% from € 521.1 million
(comparable prior-year figure) to € 622.0 million and net income by 23.0% from € 352.9 million
(comparable prior-year figure) to € 434.1 million. EPS rose correspondingly by 23.1% from
€ 1.73 (comparable prior-year figure) to € 2.13. Before amortization from purchase price
allocations (PPA), which mainly relate to the Versatel acquisition, EPS grew by 21.2% from
€ 1.89 (comparable prior-year figure) to € 2.29.

The key earnings figures stated above also include costs for major M&A projects in fiscal year
2016, i.e. especially the investment of Warburg Pincus in the “Business Applications” division
and the takeover of Strato (still subject to approval by the anti-trust authorities as of the end of
the reporting period).

Including special items in 2016 from writedowns on financial assets, EBT fell to € 367.1 million,
net income to € 179.2 million, EPS to € 0.88 and EPS before PPA to € 1.04.

Key sales and earnings figures of the Group

(in € million)

2016 2015 Change
Sales 3,948.9 3,715.7 +6.3%
EBITDA 840.6 757.2) +11.0%
EBIT 647.2 541.7) +19.5%

@ 2015 without effects from sale of Goldbach shares and part of stake in virtual minds (EBITDA and EBIT effect: € +14.0 million)

Quarterly development; change on prior-year quarter

(in € million)

Q12016 Q2 2016 Q32016 Q4 2016 Q4 2015 Change
Sales 968.6 982.6 981.1 1,016.6 960.9 +5.8%
EBITDA 202.7 197.6 212.9 227.4 216.2 +5.2%
EBIT 154.0 149.4 164.8 179.0 163.7 +9.3%

Multi-period overview: development of key sales and earnings figures

(in € million)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Sales 2,396.6 2,655.7 3,065.0 3,715.7 3,948.9
EBITDA®W 325.9 406.9 551.5 757.2 840.6
EBITDA margin 13.6% 15.3% 18.0% 20.4% 21.3%
EBIT® 232.7 312.2 430.6 541.7 647.2
EBIT margin 9.7% 11.8% 14.0% 14.6% 16.4%

@ Without special items: 2012 without Sedo impairment charges (EBIT effect: € -46.3 million) and sale of freenet shares (EBITDA and EBIT
effect: € +17.9 million); 2014 without one-off income from Versatel acquisition and portfolio optimization (EBITDA and EBIT effect:
€ +186.1 million); 2015 without effects from sale of Goldbach shares and part of stake in virtual minds (EBITDA and EBIT effect: € +14.0
million)



Group’s financial position

Thanks to the positive development of earnings, operative cash flow rose significantly from
€ 554.5 million in the previous year to € 644.2 million in fiscal year 2016.

Net cash inflows from operating activities in fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2016 were
dominated by various tax effects. Whereas in fiscal year 2015, a tax refund on a capital gains
tax payment made in late 2014 in connection with corporate restructuring and — with an
opposing effect — a further capital gains tax payment had a net positive effect on net cash
inflows of € 242.7 million in 2015, an income tax payment of around € 100.0 million (originally
due in the fourth quarter of 2015) had a negative effect on net cash inflows in 2016. Without
consideration of these opposing tax effects, net cash inflows from operating activities rose
from € 533.2 million (comparable prior-year figure) to € 587.0 million in fiscal year 2016.

Net cash outflows from investing activities amounted to € 422.7 million in the reporting
period (prior year: € 766.0 million). This resulted mainly from capital expenditures of € 168.9
million (prior year: € 140.4 million) and disbursements for the acquisition of shares in associated
companies of € 266.4 million (especially for the stake in Tele Columbus). Apart from capital
expenditures, net cash outflows from investing activities in the previous year were dominated by
payments for the acquisition of shares in affiliated companies of € 154.5 million (acquisition of
home.pl), disbursements for the acquisition of shares in associated companies of € 417.8 million
(especially for the stake in Drillisch), and investments in other financial assets of € 93.9 million
(especially for the increase in shares held in Rocket Internet SE during the company’s capital
increase). There was an opposing effect in the previous year from payments received for the
sale of associated companies amounting to € 13.3 million (from part of the shareholding in virtual
minds), and proceeds from the sale of financial assets totaling € 18.2 million (especially from
the sale of shares in Goldbach).

Free cash flow, i.e. net cash inflows from operating activities, less capital expenditures, plus
payments from disposals of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, fell from
€ 400.5 million (comparable prior-year figure without the aforementioned capital gains tax refund
of € 242.7 million net) to € 323.0 million in fiscal year 2016. This decline was due to the shift of
an income tax payment of € 100.0 million planned for the fourth quarter of 2015 to the first
quarter of 2016. Without consideration of this purely closing-date effect, free cash flow rose from
€ 300.5 million in the previous year to € 423.0 million in fiscal year 2016 — whereby free cash
flow in 2016 was positively influenced by closing-date effects from the purchase of pre-services.

Net cash flow for financing activities in fiscal year 2016 was dominated by the purchase of
treasury shares amounting to € 112.2 million (prior year: € 0), the assumption of loans totaling
€ 224.2 million (prior year: € 161.4 million) — especially for the purchase of Tele Columbus
shares — and the dividend payment of € 142.9 million (prior year: € 122.3 million).

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to € 101.7 million as of December 31, 2016 — compared
to € 84.3 million on the same date last year.



Multi-period overview: development of key cash flow figures

(in € million)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Operative cash flow 214.1 280.1 380.6 554.5 644.2
Cash flow from operating activities 260.5 268.3| 454.0@| 533.2@| 587.0@
Cash flow from investing activities 1.9 -207.8| -1.349.8 -766.0 -422.7
Free cash flow® 204.7 211.6| 386.6@| 300.5@)| 423.00)
Cash flow from financing activities -284.4 -59.2| 1.240.9 23.1 -43.2
Cash and cash equivalents on December 31 42.8 42.8 50.8 84.3 101.7

@ Free cash flow is defined as net cash inflows from operating activities, less capital expenditures, plus payments from disposals of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment

@ 2014 without consideration of a capital gains tax payment due to closing-date effects of € 335.7 million; 2015 without consideration of a
capital gains tax refund (net) of € 242.7 million

@ 2015 without consideration of a capital gains tax refund (net) of € 242.7 million and including an income tax payment (originally planned for
the fourth quarter of 2015) of around € 100.0 million; 2016 without consideration of the aforementioned income tax payment (originally
planned for the fourth quarter of 2015) of around € 100.0 million

Group’s asset position

The Group’s balance sheet total rose from € 3,885.4 million as of December 31, 2015 to
€ 4,073.7 million on December 31, 2016.

Current assets increased from € 564.9 million as of December 31, 2015 to € 631.4 million on
December 31, 2016. Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under current assets rose from
€ 84.3 million to € 101.7 million. Trade accounts receivable increased from € 218.1 million to
€ 228.0 million. Due to closing-date effects and the expansion of business, current prepaid
expenses rose from € 82.6 million to € 111.2 million. Other non-financial assets increased
from € 114.6 million to € 129.4 million and mainly comprise receivables from the tax office.

Non-current assets rose from € 3,320.5 million as of December 31, 2015 to € 3,442.3 million
on December 31, 2016. The main reason for this was the increase shares in associated
companies, which rose strongly from € 468.4 million to € 755.5 million — mainly due to the
investment in Tele Columbus. There was an opposing decrease in non-current other financial
assets from € 449.0 million to € 287.7 million — due to the subsequent valuation of listed shares
in Rocket Internet and Hi-Media as of December 31, 2016 and the sale of Hipay. Within the
items property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, additions of € 168.9 million
(mainly for furniture and fixtures, as well as software), were opposed by depreciation and
amortization of € 193.5 million. There was a slight change in goodwill from € 1,100.1 million to
€ 1,087.7 million as a result of currency effects. Due to closing-date effects and the expansion
of business, trade accounts receivable rose from € 37.4 million to € 55.8 million. Prepaid
expenses, which mainly result from advance payments made in connection with long-term
purchasing agreements, increased from € 102.4 million to € 128.0 million.

Current liabilities rose from € 967.9 million as of December 31, 2015 to € 1,269.4 million on
December 31, 2016. Current trade accounts payable fell from € 395.9 million to € 373.7 million.
Short-term bank liabilities rose from € 29.3 million to € 422.2 million. The increase mainly
results from a planned reclassification of non-current bank liabilities to current bank liabilities for
a tranche due in August 2017 to reduce bank liabilities. As a result of the planned income tax
payment made in the first quarter of 2016, income tax liabilities fell strongly from € 129.6
million to € 64.1 million.



Non-current liabilities decreased from € 1,767.7 million as of December 31, 2015 to € 1,606.5
million on December 31, 2016. The main reason was a decline in long-term bank liabilities
from € 1,507.2 million to € 1,338.4 million. The above mentioned reclassification to current bank
liabilities was opposed in particular by the investment in Tele Columbus, the income tax
payment, and the acquisition of treasury stock.

Despite the dividend payment and acquisition of treasury stock, the Group’s equity capital rose
from € 1,149.8 million on December 31, 2015 to € 1,197.8 million on December 31, 2016.
However, as a result of the strong increase in the balance sheet total, the equity ratio fell slightly
from 29.6% to 29.4%. At the end of the reporting period on December 31, 2016, United Internet
held 3,370,943 treasury shares (December 31, 2015: 917,859 treasury shares).

Due in particular to the investment in Tele Columbus, the income tax payment, and the
acquisition of treasury stock, net bank liabilities (i.e. the balance of bank liabilities and cash
and cash equivalents) increased from € 1,452.2 million as of December 31, 2015 to € 1,658.9
million on December 31, 2016.

Multi-period overview: development of relative indebtedness

2012 2013| 20140 2015 2016
Net bank liabilities® /
g 0.75 0.73 1.79 1.88 1.97
r—
Net bank liabilitiest® / 1.26 1.40 3.42 3.63 3.92
free cash flow®)

(@ 2014: increase in net bank liabilities mainly due to Versatel acquisition, Rocket investment and closing-date effects from capital gains
tax payment

@  Net bank liabilities = balance of bank liabilities and cash and cash equivalents

@  Free cash flow 2014 and 2015 without consideration of closing-date effects from a capital gains tax payment of € 335.7 million (2014) and
a capital gains tax refund (net) of € 242.7 million (2015) and an income tax payment (originally due in the fourth quarter of 2015) of around
€ 100.0 million (2016)

Further details on the objectives and methods of the Group’s financial risk management are
provided under point 42 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Multi-period overview: development of key balance sheet items

(in € million)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Total assets 1,107.7 1,270.3 3,673.4 3,885.4 4,073.7
Cash and cash equivalents 42.8 42.8 50.8 84.3 101.7
Shares in associated companies 90.9M 115.3 34.91) 468.41) 755.50)
Other financial assets 70.1 47.6 695.3@ 449.0 287.7@
Property, plant and equipment 109.2 116.2 689.3®) 665.2 655.0
Intangible assets 151.8 165.1 385.50) 389.5 369.5
Goodwill 356.24) 452.84) 977.0®| 1,100.1® 1,087.7
Liabilities due to banks 300.3G 340.0| 1,374.08)| 1,536.56)| 1,760.76)
Capital stock 215.0 194.00| 205.00 205.0 205.0
Treasury stock 263.6 5.20) 35.3 26.3 1225
Equity 198.1 307.9| 1,204.7() 1,149.8 1,197.8
Equity ratio 17.9% 24.2% 32.8% 29.6% 29.4%

(@ Repurchase of Versatel shares via Versatel's holding company (2012); decrease due to contribution of the GFC and EFF funds to
Rocket and complete takeover of Versatel (2014); increase due to investment in Drillisch (2015); increase due to investment in Tele
Columbus (2016)

@ Increase due to investment in Rocket (2014), decrease due to sale of Goldbach shares and subsequent valuation on shares in listed
companies (2015); decrease due to subsequent valuation of shares in listed companies (2016)

@ Increase due to complete takeover of Versatel (2014)

@  Decrease due to impairment charges for Sedo Holding (2012); increase due to Arsys acquisition (2013); increase due to complete
takeover of Versatel (2014); increase due to acquisition of home.pl (2015)

) Decrease due to repayment of loans (2012); increase due to Rocket investment and takeover of Versatel (2014); increase due to
increased stake in Rocket, Drillisch investment, and acquisition of home.pl; increase due to investment in Tele Columbus

©® Decrease due to share cancellations (2013); increase due to capital increase (2014)

(™ Increase due to capital increase (2014)



Management Board’s overall assessment of the Group’s business situation

On the whole, the macroeconomic conditions in the main target countries of the United Internet
Group developed more negatively than expected during the reporting period. Whereas the
economies of the USA, Canada and Mexico, as well as the UK and Italy, lagged well behind the
IMF's original forecast in some cases, only Spain actually exceeded expectations. France and
Germany — United Internet's most important market — at least developed within the expected
range. The German ICT market trended in line with the German economy during fiscal year
2016 and also exceeded the original expectations with growth of 1.7%.

Although the macroeconomic trend in the target countries as a whole fell short of expectations
and sector growth was modest, United Internet enjoyed dynamic growth in fiscal year 2016 once
again with the addition of 1 million customer contracts to 16.97 million, revenue growth of 6.3%
to € 3.949 billion and an increase in EBITDA of 11.0% to € 840.6 million. With the milestones in
customer contracts, sales and earnings reached in fiscal year 2016, United Internet was able to
meet its original forecasts and the more specific guidance issued during the year and, in some
cases, even easily surpass them.

The company’s successful performance — especially when compared with the macroeconomic
and sector trends — highlights the benefits of United Internet's business model based
predominantly on electronic subscriptions with fixed monthly payments and contractually fixed
terms. This ensures stable and predictable revenues and cash flows, offers protection against
cyclical influences and provides the financial scope to win new customers, expand existing
customer relationships, and grasp opportunities in new business fields and new markets —
organically or via investments and acquisitions.

In the fiscal year 2016, the company once again invested heavily in gaining and expanding
customer relationships, as well as in developing new products — thus laying the basis for future
growth. In addition to strengthening the foundations for its operational business, United Internet
tapped additional opportunities and growth potential with its strategic investment in Tele
Columbus, the investment of Warburg Pincus in the Business Applications division, and the
takeover of Strato AG.

The financial position of United Internet AG remained strong in fiscal year 2016. Adjusted for tax
effects, free cash flow was still high at € 423.0 million (comparable prior-year figure: € 300.5
million). This once again underlines the Group’s ability to generate very healthy levels of cash
while at the same time achieving strong qualitative growth.

In addition to the purchase of treasury shares, the change in the Group’s asset position was
mainly caused by the increase in shares held in associated companies following the investment
in Tele Columbus and — with an opposing effect — the decline in other financial assets due to
the subsequent valuation of listed shares in Rocket Internet.

As of the reporting date for the annual financial statements 2016, and at the time of preparing
this management report, the Management Board believes that the United Internet Group as a
whole is well placed for its further development. It regards the financial position and performance
— subject to possible special items — as positive and is optimistic about the Group’s future
prospects.



2.4 POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Earnings of United Internet AG

As a pure holding company, the earnings position of United Internet AG is dominated by its
investment and financial result.

In the period under review, sales of the parent company amounted to € 2.0 million (prior year:
€ 1.4 million) and result mainly from services rendered to the Group’s subsidiaries.

Other operating income rose to € 6.2 million (prior year: € 1.9 million) and mainly comprises
income relating to other periods from the reversal of accruals (especially for the employee stock
ownership program) as well as foreign currency effects.

Adjusted for effects from employee stock ownership programs, personnel expenses in fiscal
year 2016 amounted to € 1.3 million (prior year: € 1.8 million). The decline results from the
decision of CEO Ralph Dommermuth to waive his right to Management Board remuneration for
the fiscal year 2016 and the following years. As in the past, Mr. Ralph Dommermuth will
continue to drive the company’s long-term development and value growth, and will participate
in the company’s success as the major shareholder via dividends.

Other operating expenses increased to € 14.0 million (prior year: € 9.3 million) and mostly
comprise legal, auditing and consulting fees (€ 12.2 million; prior year: € 4.4 million).

Income from profit transfer agreements of € 103.2 million (prior year: € 80.4 million) result
from the profit transfer of 1&1 Mail & Media Applications SE.

Income from investments of € 120.0 million (prior year: € 0) relate to a dividend paid from the
balance sheet profit 1&1 Internet SE.

Expenses for loss assumptions of € 249.1 million (prior year: € 15.1 million) mainly result
from the compensation expense of United Internet Ventures AG (€ 229.7 million — especially
from the writedown of shares held by the company in Rocket Internet), as well as United Internet
Corporate Services GmbH (€ 6.7 million) and 1&1 Telecommunication SE (€ 12.5 million).

The parent company’s result before taxes amounted to € -17.7 million (prior year: € 74.3
million).

Income taxes of € 29.6 million (prior year: € 23.0 million) comprise deferred tax expenses of
€ 10.6 million, current taxes of 2016 of € 24.9 million (of which € 12.5 million for corporation tax
and the solidarity surcharge and € 12.3 million for trade tax). There was an opposing effect
from tax income not relating to the period amounting to € 5.8 million.

The net loss in the separate financial statements of United Internet AG amounted to € -47.3
million (prior year: net income of € 51.3 million).

Assets and financial position of United Internet AG

The parent company’s balance sheet total rose from € 4,225.3 million on December 31, 2015
to € 4,512.7 million on December 31, 2016.

Non-current assets of the parent company of € 2,993.2 million (prior year: € 2,993.0 million)
are dominated by financial assets. Shares in affiliated companies increased slightly to
€ 1,558.4 million (prior year: € 1,558.3 million). Loans to affiliated companies were
unchanged at € 1,434.6 million.

Current assets of the parent company amounting to € 1,519.5 million (prior year: € 1,232.3
million) comprise receivables due from affiliated companies and other assets. The receivables
due from affiliated companies rose to € 1,389.9 million (prior year: € 1,134.4 million). These
mainly comprise receivables within the United Internet Group’s internal cash management



system. The increase results in particular from the purchase of Columbus shares by United
Internet Ventures AG. Other assets disclosed under current assets amounting to € 121.0
million (prior year: € 89.9 million) consist mainly of receivables due from the tax office.

Shareholders’ equity of the parent company amounted to € 2,247.3 million (prior year:
€ 2,527.5 million). The change in the reporting period is mainly due to the dividend payout of
€ 142.9 million and the net loss for the year (€ 47.3 million). The purchase of treasury shares
(€ 112.2 million) and use of treasury shares for employee stock ownership plans (€ 22.1 million)
resulted in a total net reduction of shareholders’ equity of € 90.1 million. As a result of the
decline in shareholders’ equity, the equity ratio fell from 59.8% in the previous year to 49.8%
as of December 31, 2016.

The parent company’s accruals mainly comprise accrued taxes, mostly for previous years,
amounting to € 12.6 million (prior year: € 7.0 million) as well as other accrued liabilities for
employee stock ownership plans, legal, auditing and consulting fees, as well as bonuses and
commissions totaling € 17.1 million (prior year: € 18.5 million).

The liabilities of the parent company are dominated in particular by liabilities to banks and
liabilities due to affiliated companies. Due in particular to the dividend payment, the purchase
of treasury shares and the investment in Columbus, liabilities to banks rose to € 1,747.4
million in fiscal 2016 (prior year: € 1,409.2 million). Bank liabilities result mainly from a
syndicated loan totaling € 750 million concluded in August 2014, a promissory note loan of
€ 600 million concluded in December 2014, and a revolving syndicated loan of € 810 million,
which had been utilized in an amount of € 390 million as of the reporting date. Liabilities to
affiliated companies rose to € 458.4 million (prior year: € 242.3 million) and mainly comprise
liabilities from balances within the United Internet Group’s cash pooling system (€ 194.6
million), from service arrangements (€ 14.7 million), and from profit transfer agreements
(€ 249.1 million). Other liabilities of € 18.7 million (prior year: € 20.8 million) consist of sales
tax liabilities.

Cash flow of the parent company’s financial statements is dominated by cash flows from the
profit transfer agreements and the assumption of additional financial liabilities. The dividend
payment in fiscal year 2016 and the purchase of treasury shares disclosed under financial
activities had the opposing effect.

Management Board’s overall assessment of the current business situation of United
Internet AG

Due to its role as the Group’s holding company, the economic position of United Internet AG at
parent company level is mainly influenced by its investment result. The above statements on
the Group’s economic position therefore also apply qualitatively for United Internet AG itself.



2.5 SIGNIFICANT NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

United Internet AG believes that its entrepreneurial activities are not solely restricted to the
pursuit and implementation of economic objectives, but also involve a commitment and
responsibility towards society and the environment. United Internet assumes this responsibility
in a variety of ways. The most important aspects are summarized in the following sections.

Sustainable business policy

United Internet is committed to pursuing a sustainable business policy. This sustainability is
illustrated in particular by its high level of investment in customer relationships, in service
guality, customer retention and customer satisfaction, in product and network quality, as well
as in security and data privacy — and thus also in sustainable growth.

Customer growth

In its fiscal year 2016, United Internet once again invested heavily in customer growth and
raised the number of fee-based customer contracts organically by 1.00 million to 16.97 million
contracts.

In addition to these fee-based contracts, United Internet also operates 34.29 million active free
accounts (prior year: 33.15 million) at its data centers that are refinanced via advertising
revenue.

In total, therefore, United Internet manages a total of 51.26 million customer accounts (prior

year: 49.12 million) globally.

Multi-period overview: development of customer relationships

(in million)

2012 2013® 2014 20150 2016
Growth of “fee-based contracts” +1.18 +1.41 +1.33 +1.19 +1.00
Growth of “free accounts” +1.00 -0.05 +0.61 +1.03 +1.14
Growth of “total accounts” +2.18 +1.36 +1.94 +2.22 +2.14

@ Including 0.33 million fee-based contracts from the takeover of Arsys
@ Including 0.42 million fee-based contracts from the takeover of Versatel
@ Including 0.34 million fee-based contracts from the takeover of home.pl and an opposing 0.08 million from contract streamlining

Service quality, customer retention and customer satisfaction

United Internet has also invested heavily in service quality, and thus also in customer retention
and customer satisfaction, since the launch of the DSL quality drive in 2009 and the introduction
of the so-called 1&1 Principle in 2012 with its international rollout in 2013.

With the 1&1 Principle, customers are given five clear product-related performance promises.
These include, for example, a one-month test phase and highly available expert hotline, as well
as — in the case of DSL and mobile products — delivery of hardware within one working day or
on-site replacement of faulty equipment on the next working day, and — for cloud products — a
monthly product upgrade or downgrade and geo-redundancy for maximum data security.

The excellent hotline test results achieved in our recent history are proof that the investments
in service quality are having an impact: for example, the 1&1 service hotline for new mobile



customers came first in a major hotline test conducted by CHIP magazine (November 2016),
ahead of 15 competitors. In over 9,000 test calls, CHIP evaluated the providers’ service in the
categories Availability, Waiting Time, Service and Transparency. In the “Mobile Provider”
category, the 1&1 service hotline was rated “Very Good” in all four aspects. 1&1 also received
the “Very Good” accolade for all four aspects in the “Landline & Internet” category. And also in
the “Hosting” category, the 1&1 service hotline for new customers received both “Good” and
“Very Good" ratings.

The same applies to the field of customer satisfaction/customer trust. For example, the United
Internet brand GMX is the e-mail provider which Germans trust most. This was the result of a
survey (November 2016) commissioned by the magazine “Wirtschaftswoche” in which GMX
received the “Highest Customer Trust” rating. Starting in 2014, “Wirtschaftswoche” has been
examining the trust of German consumers in various companies once a year, in conjunction
with the research company Service Value. The results are published in “Germany’s Largest
Trust Ranking”. In 2016, 253,895 customers of 894 companies in 67 sectors were interviewed.
The survey’s academic advisor is Rolf van Dick, a professor at the University of Frankfurt /
Main. For the third year running, GMX has thus taken first place in this ranking of e-mail
providers and achieved a score in 2016 which was 17.4% above the average for all e-mail
providers (62.8%).

Product quality
United Internet’s products once again received numerous accolades in fiscal year 2016.

For example, the US analyst firm Cloud Spectator rated our hosting services high in a number
of categories. 1&1 Cloud Server came first in the Top 10 “Cloud Vendor Benchmark 2016” for
North America and Europe. With its strong performance and excellent value-for-money, 1&1
Cloud Server beat off all relevant competitors. The 1&1 E-Shops were also rated very high in
the Cloud Spectator benchmark. As test winner, they scored top marks for speed and security.
For example, the landing page of the 1&1 E-Shops loads 1.5 seconds faster than competitor
sites.

In October 2016, the German consumer test organization “Stiftung Warentest” reported on the
strengths and weaknesses of e-mail providers. A total of 15 fee-based and free services were
tested during concealed usage in June and July 2016. The focus was on handling, data security
and general e-mail features, like mailbox size and cloud storage. GMX and WEB.DE were rated
the best free providers thanks to their security features and easy-to-use, end-to-end encryption.

Security and data privacy

With the launch of the “E-Mail made in Germany” initiative in 2013 (in cooperation with a
network also comprising Deutsche Telekom and freenet), United Internet also offers its
customers high standards with regard to the security and privacy of e-mail communication. This
includes the encrypted transmission of all e-mails on all network routes, the processing and
storage of all data in Germany according to German data protection regulations and the
identification of secure e-mail addresses within the e-mail applications. As of April 29, 2014,
only SSL keys certified in Germany are used within the “E-Mail made in Germany” network and
all transmission routes are fully encrypted. As an important enhancement of the security
standard “E-Mail made in Germany”, the United Internet e-mail services GMX and WEB.DE
developed an encryption system based on the globally recognized “Pretty Good Privacy” (PGP)
standard in 2015. The new e-mail security level works on all commonly used devices, is
provided free to all customers of the two mail services, and is compatible with all previous PGP
applications. In 2016, the PGP solution of GMX and WEB.DE was also rolled out in the foreign
markets of France, Spain and the UK via the international e-mail brand mail.com.

With the introduction of the De-Mail standard in 2012, a legally secure e-mail communication
system was established in Germany. It can be used, for example, to make official registrations



with local authorities or legally binding business transactions. WEB.DE, GMX and 1&1 have
been accredited De-Mail service providers since 2013. With the certification received in 2016
according the EU regulation eIDAS, WEB.DE, GMX and 1&1 can also offer their users legally
secure e-mail communication in all other EU member states in future on the basis of this
certified infrastructure. The eIDAS (“electronic Identification and Signature”) regulation
provides an EU-wide standard for the unambiguous identification of all participants and the
digital signing of electronic, cross-border data transmission. This creates uniform conditions for
trustworthy, verifiable document traffic and legally secure communication between citizens,
authorities and companies in all EU member states.

Employees

The internet sector is a highly dynamic and globally networked industry with short innovation
cycles. United Internet AG has risen to these challenges with great success over many years
now. One of the key factors for the success and growth of the United Internet Group are its
dedicated and highly competent employees and executives with their entrepreneurial and
autonomous approach to work. The company therefore attaches great importance to a
sustainable and balanced strategy across all aspects of its HR activities: from employee
recruitment, to targeted entry-level and vocational training formats, tailored skills training
programs, support with individual career paths, through to sustainable management
development programs and the retention of high potentials and top performers.

United Internet AG was once again recognized as a top employer in 2016. Based on an
independent study of the “Top Employers Institute”, United Internet received the “TOP
Employers Germany” award — as in the preceding years. Certification is only awarded to
organizations which offer staff attractive working conditions. Assessment is based on career
opportunities, employer benefits, working conditions, training and development opportunities,
and the corporate culture.

The company is particularly proud of its “"HR Excellence Award 2016”. The HR Excellence
Awards honor innovative lighthouse projects in the field of HR management in Germany. United
Internet won in the category “Employee Development and Feedback Culture (Group)” for its
multi-strategy aimed at strengthening the company’s feedback culture. The jury were
particularly impressed by the modern aspects of the company’s approach to HR work: focus
on feedback and appreciation, iterative implementation (on which colleagues worked from the
first day onwards), and digital implementation.



Headcount and key figures

In the highly competitive market for skilled workers in the IT sector, United Internet once again
succeeded in recruiting top staff for its key positions and thus meeting the needs of its growing
business. In addition to targeted employer branding, partnerships with education and training
providers, and the positive impact of the company’s product brands on candidates, our
successful recruitment efforts center around a candidate-friendly, highly competitive acquisition
and selection process and the efforts of our executives.

There was a slight year-on-year decline in headcount in the fiscal year 2016. Specifically, the
number of employees fell by 1.9% to 8,082 (prior year: 8,239).

There were 3,478 employees in the Access segment (prior year: 3,142), 4,406 in the
Applications segment (prior year: 4,945) and 198 employed at the Group’s headquarters (prior
year: 152). The strong increase in staff at the Group’s headquarters resulted from the transfer
of employees from the segments (especially the Applications segment) who already worked in
corporate functions.

Headcount in Germany fell by 1.0% auf 6,438 as of December 31, 2016 (prior year: 6,502).

The number of employees at the Group’s non-German subsidiaries decreased by 5.4% to 1,644
(prior year: 1,737).

Multi-period overview: headcount development (by segment and domestic/foreign)

2012 | 2013W 2014 2015 2016 ngrhgg%g

Employees, total 6,254 6,723 7,832 8,239 8,082 -1.9%
thereof domestic 4904| 5080| 6168| 6502| 6,438 -1.0%
thereof foreign 1,350 1643| 1,664| 1,737| 1,644 - 5.4%
Access segment 1,928| 2,025| 2965| 3,142 3,478 +10.7%
Applications segment 4292 | 4664| 4829| 4945| 4,406 -10.9%
Corporate 34 34 38 152 198 + 30.3%

@ The headcount statistics of United Internet AG were revised as of June 30, 2014 and now disclose only active employees. The comparative
figures as of December 31, 2013 were adapted retroactively.

Personnel expenses rose to € 445.7 million in fiscal 2016 (prior year: € 429.7 million). The
personnel expense ratio therefore fell to 11.3% (prior year: 11.6%).

Multi-period overview: development of personnel expenses

(in € million)
Change
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 over 2015
Personnel expenses 275.1 306.1 351.7 429.7 445.7 +3.7%
Personnel expense ratio 11.5% 11.5% 11.5% 11.6% 11.3%

Sales per employee, based on annual average headcount, amounted to
thousand in fiscal year 2016 (prior year: approx. € 461 thousand).

approx. € 484




Targeted staff support and ongoing development

In order to keep pace with or even anticipate new technologies, competitive ideas and market
trends, itis important to continuously develop the company’s employees. Pooling and retaining
knowledge in-house requires a sustainable policy for aligning the company and market
requirements for various functions with the individual career objectives and prospects of staff.

United Internet attaches great importance to giving all employees at all locations — regardless
of departments and functions — the same opportunities for development. A transparent, group-
wide framework for staff development was therefore defined from an early stage. The range
comprises standard programs and support measures, as well as various function-based
offerings which are tailored to the respective employee and skills profile. Specifically, this
involves a gradual assumption of responsibility and an expansion of competencies within the
specific field of work function — from beginner to expert.

Staff are supported both in their daily work (“on the job”) as well as with targeted training
measures. United Internet is also moving with the times in this respect by offering a wide range
of training via a digital platform (1&1 Campus) in addition to the existing program. Everybody
recognizes it on a day-to-day basis: learning is no longer restricted to school and vocational
education. Social, economic and above all technological developments both call for and
enable a permanent learning process. This new platform offers flexible learning opportunities,
a wide range of formats, easy usage possibilities, and requires users to display a high degree
of inner drive during the learning process.

In addition to vertical development paths, horizontal development is also possible between
different functions. In addition, the organization's permeability allows transfers between
products or segments and thus enables the interdisciplinary development of employees.

For employees who have reached the highest competency level (“senior”) for their respective
function and would like to assume more responsibility for a special topic or in a management
role, the company offers two career models: the “management track” and the “expert track”.
Whereas employees choosing the “management track” gradually assume more and more staff
responsibility, “experts” have a high degree of specialist knowledge. However, they have no
direct line responsibility, but are top performers, “know-how owners”, and advisors on strategic
guestions in their specific field and act as multipliers for their knowledge inside and outside
the company. Both the management and expert tracks are “permeable”, i.e. horizontal
movement is also possible and an expert can become a manager and vice versa.

Discovering and nurturing potential and performance from an early stage

With the aid of junior management programs, such as the 1&1 Graduate or Master+ plans,
United Internet develops young talents fresh from university from an early stage. The main
target is to be able to recruit and train future managers and specialists from within the
company.

Further development programs are offered for staff with exceptional abilities and potential in
all areas of the company. Such employees are then accompanied through a structured
program of individual development and training plans in order to prepare them for their future
personal chal